HUDSON RIVER VALLEY GREENWAY Combined meeting of Greenway Conservancy for the Hudson River Valley, Inc., Hudson River Valley Greenway Communities Council, and Greenway Heritage Conservancy HRV, Inc. October 9, 2019 Henry A. Wallace Center at the FDR Library and Museum Hyde Park, NY 12538 Minutes

Attendance

Conservancy Members Present

Brown, Kristin Cole, Conservancy Member Burke, Kevin, Conservancy Chairman Daniels, Jane, Conservancy Member McLaughlin, Jayne, Conservancy Treasurer Olson, Sarah, Conservancy Secretary Weiss, Daniela, Conservancy Member

Conservancy Members Present by Proxy

Jacks, Betsy, Conservancy Member Lanzetta, Cindy, Conservancy Member Murray, Dennis, Conservancy Member Tobin, Erin, Conservancy Member

Council Members Present

Aldrich, J. Winthrop, Council Member Elliott, Robert, Westchester County Council Member Galef, Sandra, Council Member Head, Betty, Albany County Council Member McHenry, Barnabas, Council Chairman McNamara, Mary, Ulster County Council Member Schiafo, Richard, Greene County Council Member Smith, Michelle, Putnam County Council Member von der Heide, Linda, Rensselaer County Council Member Yaun, Johanna, Orange County Council Member

Council Members Present by Proxy

Downey, Margaret (Meg), Dutchess County Council Member Saland, Stephen, Council Member

Council Members Present by Phone

Altieri, Vincent, Rockland County Council Member

Delegates Present

Cooper, Linda, Joint Delegate for Commissioner, NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation

Dunwell, Fran, Joint Co-Delegate for Commissioner, NYS Department of Environmental Conservation Ethier, Jaime, Joint Deputy Delegate for Secretary of State

Rooney, Frank, Joint Deputy Delegate for Commissioner of NYS Department of Agriculture and Markets

Taylor, Meghan, Joint Delegate for Commissioner, Empire State Development Wolfanger, Jason, Joint Co-Delegate for Commissioner, NYS Department of Transportation Wrafter, Eoin, Delegate for Conservancy Member Marcus Molinaro

Advisory Members Present

Bicking, Andy, Scenic Hudson

Greenway Staff Present

Arana, Cody, Assistant Event Coordinator Beers, Andy, Empire State Trails Director Campochiaro, Beth, Trails and Community Outreach Director Glesta, Paul, Empire State Trails Project Director Jeanson, Daniel, Project Coordinator Keller, Scott, Executive Director

Call to Order

Chairman Kevin Burke called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m.

Welcome New Board Members

Chairman Burke recognized a new appointment to the Council Board, Richard Schiafo. Mr. Schiafo is a Principal Planner with the Greene County Department of Economic Development, Tourism and Planning, and has been appointed to the Greenway Council by Patrick S. Linger, Chairman of the Greene County Legislature and Chief Elected Official. Mr. Schiafo thanked the Board and noted that he was very excited to be a part of the board.

Chairman Burke also welcomed Christian Leo, a new delegate to the Board for the Commissioner of the Office of General Services.

Presentations

Chairman McHenry introduced Megan Phillips, Senior Policy Advisor for the Environment in the Office of Governor Andrew M. Cuomo. Ms. Phillips noted that she has previously worked with the State Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation as well as the Department of State and feels a personal connection to the Greenway. Ms. Phillips congratulated the Greenway on their Tourism Association Award for the Hudson River Train Tour App, as well as the successful completion of the 20th Annual Hudson River Valley Ramble.

Ms. Phillips noted that her office oversees eight environmental agencies from large to small, and she has learned how planning really touches everything, such as the Greenway Compact. She

also noted the Empire State Trail and the sister Water Trail to the Empire State Trail, and how these initiatives can be used to benefit communities and link downtowns.

Ms. Phillips spoke about a new habitat restoration program recently announced by Governor Cuomo in NYC, where they will be doubling shellfish restoration off Long Island. Revive Mother Nature will identify priority projects for habitat improvement. This new habitat restoration initiative will be fully outlined at the 2020 State of the State. Ms. Phillips noted that the Greenway is a good example of telling the story of a place.

Michelle Smith asked whether the habitat restoration initiative will be expanded to land habitat, and Ms. Phillips answered that they are still working that out. Andy Bicking noted that this is an exciting project, and that the relationship and balance between public access and protection of resources is in important issue.

Linda von der Heide asked if the project team will be looking at the issue of invasive species, and Ms. Phillips said they will be thinking about that in their planning process.

Betty Head brought up the Climate Smart Communities program and sked if there will be some money in the budget for this program. Ms. Phillips noted that the numbers are still being hashed out but that the team will work closely with communities and will seek to hear from stakeholders. She noted that Revive Mother Nature will explore funding options and will be working on projects that have been identified by state agencies as priority.

Chairman Burke suggested that it would be beneficial to explore providing guidance on manmade ponds that are going back to wetlands and what process that should take, whether to preserve the pond or to let the wetlands take over.

Kitty Brown noted that many partners have provided written comment on the Danskammer plant plan for Newburgh, that they would like Danskammer to respond to flaws in the plan, especially considering environmental justice. Ms. Phillips said that several folks on her team are working on environmental justice issues.

Proclamations

Chairman Burke introduced Executive Director Scott Keller, who read two proclamations. The first was a Certificate of Highest Merit for Peggy Lockwood, from Fort Montgomery State Historic Site, for her generous donation of effort, time, and talent to the 20th Anniversary of the Hudson River Valley Ramble by creating a memorial t-shirt quilt using various Ramble leader shirts from the past twenty years. The second was a Volunteer Recognition Certificate presented to David and Carol White, for their dedication and commitment to the Hudson River Valley Greenway and their efforts to promote our region by hosting hikes for nearly 20 years on the Hudson River Valley Ramble.

Chairman Burke called for a vote, and on a motion from Jane Daniels (Linda von der Heide second) the Certificates were unanimously approved.

Agenda Review

Chairman Burke recognized that today was Yom Kippur, one of the holiest days in the Jewish faith, but that it was the only date available for the Board Meeting. Chairman Burke then called for any changes and additions to the agenda. Mr. Keller noted that there would be an addendum to the agenda, a Community designation

Approval of minutes of June 12, 2019 Combined Meeting of the Hudson River Valley Greenway Communities Council, Greenway Conservancy for the Hudson River Valley, Inc. and Greenway Heritage Conservancy HRV, Inc.

Chairman Burke noted that there was one update that would be made to the minutes of June 12, 2019, reflecting that Betty Head was present at the meeting. Chairman Burke then asked for a motion to accept the minutes of the June 12, 2019 Greenway Joint Meeting. On a motion from Bob Elliott, (Mary McNamara second) the minutes of the June 12, 2019 Combined Meeting of the Hudson River Valley Greenway Communities Council, Greenway Conservancy for the Hudson River Valley, Inc. and Greenway Heritage Conservancy HRV, Inc. were unanimously approved.

Minutes of September 30, 2019 Meeting of the Hudson River Valley Greenway

Grants Committee

On a motion from Wint Aldrich (Bob Elliott second) the minutes of the September 30, 2019 meeting of the Hudson River Valley Greenway Grants Committee were unanimously approved.

Hudson River Valley Greenway Communities Council

Call to Order

Chairman Barnabas McHenry called the Council meeting to order.

Hudson River Valley Greenway Grant Awards

Mr. Keller reviewed the Greenway Grant applications recommended for funding by the Greenway Grants Committee.

Greenway Planning Grants Program

The *Town of Gallatin, Columbia County*, is seeking grant funding in the amount of \$8,562.50 for a Comprehensive Plan Review. The Committee recommends \$8,500.

The *Village of Athens, Greene County*, is seeking grant funding in the amount of \$9,996.65 for a Town and Village Comprehensive Plan. The Committee recommends \$9,900.

The *Village of Valatie, Columbia County*, is seeking grant funding in the amount of \$10,000 for Kinderhook Creek Shoreline Resiliency Improvements. The Committee recommends \$10,000.

Greenway Compact Grants Program

The Village of Ossining, Westchester County, is seeking grant funding in the amount of \$18,000 for a Comprehensive Plan. The Committee recommends \$18,000. Assemblywoman Sandra Galef recused herself from the vote on this grant.

Request for Designation as a Greenway Community

Scott Keller announced that the Greenway had received a request for designation as a Greenway Community from the Village of Cambridge, Washington County. He noted that this was due in part to the efforts of Jeanne Williams, Executive Director of the Feeder Canal Alliance.

Chairman McHenry called for a vote on the Greenway Planning and Compact Grants, and on the Greenway Community designation. On a motion from Bob Elliott (Mary McNamara second) the grants and community designation were unanimously approved.

Hudson River Valley National Heritage Area

Call to Order

Chairman Burke and Chairman McHenry called the National Heritage Area (NHA) meeting to order.

National Heritage Area Heritage Development Grant Awards

Mr. Keller reviewed the Grants Committee recommendations for the National Heritage Area Heritage Development Grants program.

The Albany County Historical Association is seeking grant funding in the amount of \$2,000 for the Art Meets History: Family Engagement Program. The Committee recommends \$2,000.

The Friends of Clermont are seeking grant funding in the amount of \$2,069 for the project Inspired by our "Clear Mountain": Landscape, Art, and the Livingston Family. The Committee recommends \$2,000. Clermont and Albany County Historical Society are partnering on these grants.

The Hudson River Maritime Museum is seeking grant funding in the amount of \$5,000 for the Mary Powell Permanent Exhibit. The Committee recommends \$5,000.

The Putnam History Museum is seeking funding in the amount of \$5,000 for a Recreation, Nature, and Sports Exhibition. The Committee recommends \$5,000.

The Fullerton Center is seeking grant funding in the amount of \$7,850 for an Urban Archive in Newburgh app. The Committee recommends \$5,000.

The Yorktown Trail Town Committee is seeking grant funding in the amount of \$5,000 for a project Interpreting quarrying in the Town of Yorktown with signs and online resources. The Committee recommends \$5,000.

Jane Daniels recused herself from the vote on the Yorktown Trail Town grant.

Chairman Burke called for a vote on the recommended grants. On a motion from Wint Aldrich (Jayne McLaughlin second), the grants were unanimously approved.

2019 Hudson River Valley Ramble

Beth Campochiaro thanked all the sponsoring organizations of the 20th Anniversary of the Hudson River Valley Ramble, in particular the Hudson River Estuary Program and NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and Historic Preservation. While numbers of participants are still being gathered,

there were roughly 210 events this year. Ms. Campochiaro also thanked Cody Arana, the Greenway's Assistant Event Coordinator, for all of his hard work on the Ramble this year. Through Cody's research, the Greenway was able to estimate that over 20 years, the Ramble has had 500 agency and organizational partners, and more than 3,500 events. Ms. Campochiaro also noted that Conservancy Member Jane Daniels had run a Ramble event every year with her husband Walt.

Washington Rochambeau Revolutionary Route National Historic Trail (WARO)

Scott Keller announced that the National Park Service had identified 14 sites in New York that will be interpreted as part of the trail. The New York delegation reviewed the list and suggested two additional sites, including West Point. WARO is planning to update the current signage package to MUTCD standards so they may be placed on highways as directional signs, and are exploring creating a driving tour app modeled on our Hudson River Train Tour app.

Hudson River Train Tour App

Scott Keller announced that the Hudson River Valley National Heritage Area's Hudson River Train Tour App was awarded the New York Tourism Industry Association's Digital Campaign Marketing Award at their meeting on September 27th in Auburn. Mr. Keller thanked the advertising firm of BBG&G for their work on promoting the app. He also noted that the HRVNHA had received the last 10 audio stories for the app.

Women's History in the Hudson Valley

Scott Keller announced that the National Park Service was planning a commemoration of the centennial of the 19th Amendment, and that the Hudson River Valley National Heritage Are would be assisting by reaching out to partner heritage sites. More details would be forthcoming.

Greenway Conservancy for the Hudson River Valley, Inc.

Call to Order

Chairman Burke called the Conservancy meeting to order.

Designation of Empire State Trail as a Greenway Trail

Scott Keller noted that as part of the Greenway Trail Grants Program, all grantees are required to nominate their trail to become part of the Greenway Trail. While some portions of the Empire State Trail (EST) are on existing designated portions, there are roughly 184.6 miles of EST currently undesignated. The Conservancy Board must affirm designation of the remaining portions as part of the Greenway Trail. Chairman Burke called for a vote, and on a motion from Jane Daniels (Sarah Olson second) the designation was unanimously approved. The entire Empire State Trail in the Hudson River Valley Greenway area will be part of the Greenway Trail System once construction is complete in 2020.

Recognition of Hyde Park Trail

Scott Keller noted that the entirety of the Hyde Park Trail system was designated as part of the Greenway Trail at the June 12, 2019 Greenway Board Meeting. However, several important people were unable to attend that meeting and the Mr. Keller recognized those in attendance today, including Kathleen Davis, the happily retired Town of Hyde Park Recreation Director, and Karl Beard, of the National Park Service Rivers, Trails and Conservation Assistance Program. Mr. Beard noted that the first 3.1 miles of the trail had been designated in 1991, so this was a long time in the making. He congratulated all of the collaborators on the project, including NYS Office of Parks, Recreation and

Historic Preservation, Winnakee Land Trust, Scenic Hudson, the ADK, NY-NJ Trail Conference, Dutchess County Planning, the Department of Health, and several scouts. He noted what a great leader Kathleen Davis has been.

Update on Empire State Trail

Andy Beers, Empire State Trail Director, noted that there was a fall update for both the Empire State Trail and specifically the Albany Hudson Electric Trail portion in the Board Packets. Both of these reports are also available on the website. He noted that 30% of the projects have been completed, and that there is a brand-new Gateway at the NY State Fair.

Executive Director's Report

Mr. Keller thanked the staff for their hard work. His Executive Director's Report is appended to and a part of these minutes.

New Business/Public Comment

Kitty Brown asked where the public should go with questions or issues on the Empire State Trail. Scott Keller answered that a system was being developed to report issues, but for now the point of contact should be Andy Beers.

Priscilla Brendler from Greater Hudson Heritage Network thanked the National Heritage Area for their sponsorship of their September 24th conference, and thanked Dan Jeanson and Cody Arana for coming to talk to participants. The 2019 workshop series, Harnessing the Power of Stories, will help sites to tell their stories more effectively. There are three more webinars coming up.

Future Meetings

The 2019 Joint Greenway Board meetings will be: December 11, 2019 The 2020 Joint Greenway Board meetings will be: March 11, 2020 June 10, 2020 October 14, 2020 December 9, 2020

Chairman Burke noted what an amazing influence on the Hudson Valley Chairman McHenry has been, and took a moment to acknowledge his upcoming birthday.

Adjourn Greenway Council Meeting

Chairman McHenry adjourned the Council meeting.

Greenway Conservancy for the Hudson River Valley, Inc. Executive Session

Chairman Burke called for a motion to move the Conservancy meeting into Executive Session to discuss litigation. On a motion from Kitty Brown (Jayne McLaughlin second) the motion was passed unanimously.

Reconvene Greenway Conservancy for the Hudson River Valley, Inc. in public session Chairman Burke reconvened the Conservancy meeting and called for a vote to hold a public hearing on whether construction of the Albany-Hudson Electric Trail in the Town of Stockport Columbia County should be subject to the Town of Stockport's Zoning Law. On a motion from Jane Daniels (Sarah Olson second) the motion was passed unanimously.

Adjourn

The meeting was adjourned at 11:48 a.m. by acclamation.

Respectfully submitted, Elizabeth Campochiaro Meeting Secretary

Hudson River Valley Greenway Hudson River Valley National Heritage Area *Executive Director's Report October 10, 2019 Scott Keller*

Empire State Water Trail

In his 2019 State of the State, Governor Andrew M. Cuomo announced that to complement the Governor's Empire State Trail, a sister water trail will be developed, linking together over 1,700 miles of existing water trails, on navigable State waterways, with consistent branding and website development. The Hudson River Valley Greenway has been asked to take the lead on this project. Scott Keller, Beth Campochiaro, and Cody Arana are working on this exciting project, that is the culmination of 25+ years of water trail work by the Greenway and many public and private sector partners around the state.

On May 24th the Greenway hosted the first meetings of the Date/Website Development and Signage/Branding sub-committees. Items discussed included establishing the committees' purpose, identifying and prioritizing tasks, and discussing the data necessary to be collected to form the desired map on the website and development of a logo. Those projects were advanced over the summer.

Empire State Trail (EST)

The Empire State Trail team, **Andy Beers**, **Paul Glesta**, and **Dara Morin** continue working to meet the 2020 deadline to implement the EST. A website for the trail is available at Empire State Trail link. We have released an Empire State Trail Plan, an Empire State Trail Design Guide, and an Empire State Trail User Projection.

The most exciting development is that construction has started on the Albany Hudson Electric Trail in both Rensselaer and northern Columbia counties! Several sections in Columbia County are nearing completion, but no segments are yet open. The Greenway's target date



for completing construction of the AHET Trail is November 2020. Visit Albany Hudson Electric Trail link for more information.

The Maybrook Trailway (previously called Beacon Line Rail Trail), running from Brewster to Hopewell Junction is being constructed by Metro North Railroad. Construction has begun on this segment of the trail as well. Visit <u>Maybrook Trailway link</u> for more information.

The NYS Department of Transportation has released a draft concept plan for the onroad routes. It is available: <u>NYS DOT Empire State Trail link</u>.

Twentieth Annual Hudson River Valley Ramble!

The Hudson River Valley Ramble just completed its twentieth anniversary run with a five-weekend series featuring some 200 events. Thank you and congratulations go out to all the event leaders who have participated in the Ramble. Data is still being gathered on attendance and other metrics for this year, but we do have historic numbers: more than 500 partners have held over 3,500 events. We will have a 2019 report at our next meeting.

During the summer we received an unusual request from Fort Montgomery State Historic Site (FMSHS) for past tee shirts. Peggy Lockwood, a staff member at FMSHS made a quilt from the old tee shirts and sent it to our office. We will honor Peggy's outstanding work at our October meeting.

We also will be celebrating David and Carol White who have led events for eighteen of the first nineteen years we held the Ramble. We will also be recognizing their invaluable contribution to the Ramble.

Hudson River Train Tour App Wins New York Tourism Industry Association Award

The National Heritage Area's Hudson River Train Tour App was awarded the New York Tourism Industry Association's Digital Campaign Marketing Award at their meeting on September 27th in Auburn. The awards committee determined that we had leveraged limited funding into thousands of downloads of the app. The NHA is proud to receive this award from such an important tourism partner. As part of this award Scott Keller was interviewed for the Destination On the Left podcast featuring all of the award winners.

Washington Rochambeau Revolutionary Route National Historic Trail (WARO/W3R)

The National Park Service is responsible for managing the Washington Rochambeau Revolutionary Route National Historic Trail (WARO). The friend's group, who we work with and participate on is the Washington Rochambeau Revolutionary Route Association, Inc. (WS3R) a 501(c)(3) corporation. The NPS recently appointed Steve Sims Superintendent and Johnny Carawan as the Trail Administrator. Johnny and a consulting firm spent September holding meetings in each state with WARO historic sites. A few members of the W3R group, including Scott Keller, were invited in each state. The NPS has created a Foundation Document and a Long-Range Interpretive Plan. They have identified fourteen critical sites in New York that should be a part of the trail. The New York delegation had suggestions to add a couple more sites. WARO is planning to update the current signage package to MUTCD standards so they may be placed on highways as directional signs, and are exploring creating a driving tour app modeled on our Hudson River Train Tour app.

Staff Activities

In addition to those activities mentioned above, staff also worked on these projects:

Grants and Finance Coordinator **Shannon Day** continued her many and varied internal administrative tasks such as tenant meetings, FOIL request responses, records retention, and moving the office towards paperless filing. Shannon also completed our annual internal controls certification for both the State Comptroller and the Division of Budget, as well as the Control over Payment Process Certification, completed the bi-annual Domestic Violence in the Workplace report, attended a building tenant meeting, and participated in training for the state's new procurement system. Shannon also has begun enhanced training in the Greenway's finance systems and assisted with audit preparations, and underwent Audit/Internal Control training.

Shannon, **Beth**, **Dan**, and **Scott** attended an annual review of our state website with ITS Web-NY staff. Information provided is helping us to make our website more accessible.

Trails and Community Outreach Director **Beth Campochiaro** and Assistant Event Coordinator **Cody Arana** worked diligently on the **20th annual** Hudson River Valley Ramble, and also assisted **Scott Keller** on the Empire State Water Trail and attended a Coast Guard Open House in Albany.

Cody and Project Director **Dan Jeanson** represented the Greenway and NHA at two Greater Hudson Heritage Network events, a workshop on Connecting Collections and Audience and at their annual conference.

Cody and Scott also attended a Hudson River Harbor Safety Committee meeting.

Cody also staffed our booth at a maritime festival at the Hudson River Maritime Museum, prepared four months of newsletters, performed social media upkeep for the Ramble, Greenway, and HR Greenway Water Trail.

Dan Jeanson and **Scott Keller** have participated in two planning sessions for a Sharing Women's History in the Hudson River Valley gathering as part of the centennial celebration of the passage of the 19th amendment, giving women the right to vote.

Beth Campochiaro also attended a Hudson River Resiliency meeting, prepared reports for the state under Executive Order #4 Establishing a State Green Procurement and Agency Sustainability Program and Executive Order #166 Redoubling New York's Fight Against The Economic And Environmental Threats Posed By Climate Change And Affirming The Goals Of The Paris Climate Agreement reporting, and is continuing

enhanced training in the Greenway's finance systems.

Dan Jeanson also continued working on updates to the Hudson River Train Tour app, including ten new audio stories. He has also monitored our social media campaigns for the app and NHA and represented the Greenway at the reopening of the Cohoes Visitor Center.

Executive Director **Scott Keller** is participating in efforts by the Hudson River Estuary Program to develop guidelines for restoring scenic vistas, and on creating resilient shorelines. He also participated in a W3R symposium on the crossing of the Hudson by the armies of Washington and Rochambeau. The Greenway provided a grant for a series of two symposia. He was asked to read the Greenway's proclamation remembering and honoring the late Frank Bergman at a meeting of the Hudson River Boat and Yacht Club Association.

As always, the entire staff participated in reviewing grants applications for Greenway Council Planning and National Heritage Area grants. Shannon, Beth, and Dan are working with communities and non-profits to resolve expired grants. Our staff works with these grantees to extend grant performance times, complete grant projects, or return funds that will not be used.

Teaching the Hudson Valley

Michael Zwelling and Tisha Dunstan continue work on the Teaching the Hudson Valley Program.

Grants Program Update

Grants Completed Since the June 12, 2019 Board Meeting								
Grant Type	Grantee	Project	Awarded	Match	Award Date	Completion Date		
Conservancy	Town of Fort Ann	Battle Hill Trails Master Plan	\$18,749.99	\$18,750.01	10/18/2017	7/29/2019		
Council Compact	Town of Red Hook	Amend Zoning Law for Natural Resource Protection	\$10,000.00	\$17,096.54	10/18/2017	7/25/2019		
Council Planning	Town of Woodstock	Town of Woodstock Comprehensive Plan	\$10,000.00	\$14,824.00	3/22/2017	7/9/2019		
Council Planning	Town of Dover	Update of the Town's master plan adopted in 1993 with amendments in 1999.	\$6,750.00	\$11,133.75	11/22/2010	7/23/2019		
Council Planning	Town of New Paltz	Route 299 Gateway Planning and Zoning Project	\$10,000.00	\$12,050.00	10/26/2016	7/30/2019		
Council Planning	Town of Gallatin	Gallatin Geographic Information System Project	\$6,284.00	\$6,374.63	10/14/2015	8/27/2019		
NHA	Lyndhurst	Interpretive Signage	\$1,250.00	\$1,450.00	3/11/2015	6/20/2019		
NHA	Friends of the Old Croton Aqueduct	Keeper's House Visitor + Education, 5 Graphic Panels	\$3,000.00	\$5,849.50	3/23/2016	7/29/2019		
NHA	FASNY Museum of Firefighting	FASNY Museum of Firefighting Marketing Expansion Project	\$1,750.00	\$1,750.00	7/10/2019	8/16/2019		
NHA	Hudson River Maritime Museum	Hudson River Lighthouse Coalition	\$5,400.00	\$9,097.99	4/25/2018	8/26/2019		
		Totals	\$73,183.99	\$98,376.42				

Grants Awarded Since the June 12, 2019 Board Meeting									
Grant Type	Grantee	Project	Awarded	Award Date					
Council Compact	Town of Union Vale	Master Plan Update	\$6,375.00	6/12/2019					
Council Planning	Town of Greenwich	Stewardship Plan Update	\$10,000.00	6/12/2019					
Council Planning	Town of Saugerties	Town/Village of Saugerties Comp Plan Update and Zoning Revisions	\$10,000.00	7/11/2019					
NHA	Richard B. Fisher Center for the Performing Arts at Bard College	The Fisher Center Presents Free Outdoor Performances at Montgomery Place	\$5,000.00	6/12/2019					
NHA	Boscobel House and Gardens	Boscobel Signage Revitalization	\$5,000.00	7/22/2019					
NHA	Historic Cherry Hill	"Swept Clean": A Dramatic Story of Loss and Restoration in Victorian America	\$5,000.00	6/12/2019					
NHA	Huguenot Historical Society	Picturing Huguenot Street: Three Historical Paintings that Portray a National Historic Landmark District Over Time	\$5,000.00	6/12/2019					
NHA	Saugerties Lighthouse Conservancy, Inc	Saugerties Lighthouse Sesquicentennial: Esopus Creek Puppet Suite	\$5,000.00	6/12/2019					
NHA	Thomas Cole National Historic Site	Bringing to life the home of the founding Hudson River Painter	\$5,000.00	7/1/2019					
NHA	Village of Kinderhook	Discover Historic Kinderhook: A Walking and Bicycling Tour	\$1,325.00	6/12/2019					
NHA	Walkway Over the Hudson	Interpretive Digital Signage on the Walkway	\$5,000.00	6/12/2019					
NHA	Westchester County Historical Society	WCHS/Clio App National Register Sites in Westchester County	\$7,500.00	9/11/2019					
NHA	FASNY Museum of Firefighting	FASNY Museum of Firefighting Marketing Expansion Project	\$1,750.00	7/10/2019					
		Totals	\$71,950.00						